The Shelby County Board of Supervisors met in regular session at 9:00 A.M. in the Supervisors Chamber in the Courthouse with the following members present: Steve Kenkel, Charles Parkhurst, Bryce Schaben, and Mark Maxwell, Clerk.

The Chairperson, Steve Kenkel, asked that any conflict of interest be stated concerning any item on the agenda. None were stated.

It was moved by Parkhurst, seconded by Schaben, to approve the agenda. Motion carried unanimously.

It was moved by Schaben, seconded by Parkhurst to approve the minutes of May 7th. Motion carried unanimously.

It was moved by Parkhurst, seconded by Schaben, to approve the latest claims for processing as listed in the claims register. Motion carried unanimously.

Parkhurst made a motion to recess the current meeting to hold a public hearing for an amendment to the fiscal year 2024 budget. Schaben seconded the motion, the motion passed.

Having no comments from the public previously or at this meeting, Parkhurst made a motion to close the hearing, Schaben seconded the motion. The motion passed.

Schaben made a motion to approve the following resolution, Parkhurst seconded the motion.

### RESOLUTION 2024-23 ENTRY RECORD OF THE FILING AND CONSIDERATION OF THE COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024

BE IT REMEMBERED on this 21<sup>st</sup> day of May 2024 the Board of Supervisors met in scheduled session for the filing and considering of an amendment to the Shelby County Budget for Fiscal Year 2024. THEREUPON, the Board investigated and found that the notice of the time and place of hearing had, according to law, and as directed by the Board, been published and that the affidavit of publication is on file with the County Auditor. THEREUPON, on said day, the hearing was taken up and considered. There were no written or oral comments received. THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Shelby County Budget Service Areas be amended as follows:

#### Revenues:

Intergovernmental \$20,000---Licenses & Permits \$100,500---Charges for Services \$1,000---Use of Money and Property \$22,000---Miscellaneous \$57,700---Total Revenue- \$201,200

Expenditures: Public safety \$131,500---Physical Health and social services \$100,500---County Environment and Education \$2,000---Government Services to Residents \$23,000---Capital Projects \$168,000---Total Expenditures \$ 425,000

It was noted that this amendment included \$10,800 in property tax dollars in overspending.

A vote was tallied with Schaben, Parkhurst and Kenkel all voting in favor of the resolution. No Nays were cast, the motion passed.

Cathy McQueen of the Country Care Center was present to give a report on the County owned facility. Expenditures at the facility are up, and property insurance is a large culprit. McQueen reported that the county should be proud of the facility. A similar facility in Cass County closed in the last few years and

residents had to find other places to live. The Supervisors thank McQueen for the services that the facility provides and for maintaining and making improvements to the County owned property.

Alex Londo was present to give updates from his department. Reporting that FEMA is in the County going door to door and that Small Business Administration officials are at the firehall in Minden to answer any questions about eligibility. Londo also wanted to notify all interested parties of a townhall meeting at the Veterans Memorial Building focusing on Tornado relief on May 28<sup>th</sup> at 5:00 PM.

The Supervisors reported on their assigned committee meetings they attend, as well as Supervisor Kenkel who noted that the 8<sup>th</sup> Circuit Court of Appeals isn't expected to have a ruling on reversing a lower courts decision about the proposed hazardous liquid pipeline, until later this year..

Todd Valline, Shelby County Chamber of Commerce, advised the Supervisors of the many upcoming events sponsored and assisted by his organization. Some of those include the upcoming County candidates forum May 23<sup>rd</sup> and adopt an EMS worker, those that want to help can call EMA to assist in the program. The Petersen Family Wellness Center is hosting a Senior health and fitness day May 29<sup>th</sup> from 10-12 noon. The Chamber offices are also acting as a host for the economic recovery center for tornado victims.

The Secondary Roads report was then given by Shelby County Engineer, Chris Frederickson. Overnight storm have caused damage to some recently finished road projects in Shelby County. The projects are still being evaluated from the heavy rains.

Supervisor Kenkel then presented the following resolution for consideration by the Supervisors:

# **RESOLUTION 2024-27**

## A RESOLUTION OBJECTING TO THE IOWA UTILITIES BOARD'S AUTHORITY TO ENACT EMINENT DOMAIN AUTHORITY WITHIN SHELBY COUNTY FOR PRIVATELY OWNED AND OPERATED CARBON DIOXIDE PIPELINES

**WHEREAS**, Pursuant to Iowa Code § 479B.7 and Iowa Administrative Code rule 199-13.5, any person, including a governmental entity, whose rights or interests may be affected by a proposed pipeline may file a written objection with the Board not less than five days prior to the hearing scheduled on the pipeline company's application for a permit.

**WHEREAS**, Shelby County submitted a brief objecting to the Summit proceedings and requested that the IUB deny the use of eminent domain for carbon dioxide pipelines.

**WHEREAS**, "The power of eminent domain has ancient origins... From early times to the present, property owners have argued that this power should be exercised only in limited circumstances."<sup>1</sup> The philosopher John Locke argued that the "great and chief end, therefore, of men's uniting into commonwealths, and putting themselves under government, is the preservation of their property."

**WHEREAS**, for this reason, the framers of the Constitution sought to limit the government's use of the power of eminent domain in two important ways.<sup>2</sup>. First, they included in the Fifth Amendment a requirement for the

payment of "just compensation." Second, they required that any taking of private property must be for a "public use."

WHEREAS, the United States Supreme Court has considered the issue of eminent domain many times. In the landmark case of Kelo v. City of New London, the Court discussed the federal constitutional requirements for determining "public use." The Court noted that there are two opposing rules involved in making the determination. On the one hand, the Court said, it is clear that the government may not take one person's property for the "sole purpose" of transferring it to another person. On the other hand, the Court also said it is "equally clear" that the government may transfer property from one person to another if future "use by the public" is the purpose of the taking.

**WHEREAS**, if the "public use" requirement of the Fifth Amendment means anything, it means that the government should not arbitrarily take one person's private property and transfer it to another person simply for private economic gain. In this docket, Summit is seeking eminent domain over 1,035 parcels. Through this process, Summit is seeking private gain through a taking of private property that doesn't provide public use.

WHEREAS, the reason is that this pipeline is fundamentally different from a road or a highway project that the general public can use. It's fundamentally different from a railroad that carries the general public as passengers. And it's fundamentally different from an electric or gas line that a utility uses to serve retail or wholesale customers. Essentially, Summit is justifying the use of eminent domain because it claims the project will create economic benefits for Iowans, but whatever ancillary benefits will accrue from construction of the project, it's clear they are not the primary purpose of the project and are in fact subjective at best. The primary purpose is clearly private economic gain.

WHEREAS, the driving force behind this project is climate change policy. Since 2008, Federal tax law has provided tax credits for the sequestration of carbon. Known as "45Q Credits" after the relevant tax provision, these tax credits were created to encourage the private sector to reduce the amount of carbon released into the atmosphere. In the recently passed Inflation Reduction Act, Congress significantly increased the value of these 45Q Credits. These credits represent a substantial public subsidy for private profit as it is. Taking yet more private property for Summit's private gain only compounds the problem.

**WHEREAS**, The *Kelo* case turned on the question of whether the City's economic development plan served a "public purpose." And the Court explained that its prior eminent domain cases had defined that concept broadly due to a longstanding policy of deferring to "legislative judgments" in the area of public use.

WHEREAS, "Viewed as a whole," the Court said, "our jurisprudence has recognized that the needs of society have varied between different parts of the Nation, just as they have evolved over time in response to changed circumstances. Our earliest cases in particular embodied a strong theme of federalism, emphasizing the 'great respect' that we owe to state legislatures and state courts in discerning local public needs."

**WHEREAS**, In other words, the Supreme Court was unwilling to place obstacles in front of state legislatures in the form of rigid judicial interpretations of the Constitution, and it instead preferred to allow a broad range of purposes to meet the "public use" test.

WHEREAS, However, after announcing that it wouldn't adopt a strict federal standard, the Court in *Kelo* went on to state that "nothing in our opinion precludes any State from placing further restrictions on its exercise of the takings power."

**WHEREAS**, even before the *Kelo* case was decided, many states had imposed "public use" requirements that were stricter than the more flexible federal minimum standard, and many states since then have imposed

additional restrictions in the wake of the *Kelo* decision. These additional restrictions on the use of eminent domain can take the form of either state constitutional requirements or state statutory requirements. Iowa has adopted additional restrictions.

**WHEREAS**, Like the Fifth Amendment to the United States Constitution, Article I, section 18 of the Iowa Constitution also contains a "takings" clause, and like the Fifth Amendment, it also requires that private property not be taken "for public use" without "just compensation."

**WHEREAS**, The Iowa Supreme Court is the final authority on the interpretation of the Iowa Constitution, and while it generally considers Federal interpretations of the Takings Clause to be persuasive, it is not required to interpret the Iowa Takings Clause in the same flexible way as the Supreme Court interprets the Federal Takings Clause.

**WHEREAS**, The Iowa Supreme Court recently considered the issue of constitutional authority for eminent domain in the case of *Puntenney v. Iowa Utilities Board*, which involved an oil pipeline being built by Dakota Access, LLC. In considering the issue, the Iowa Supreme Court thoroughly reviewed the Kelo case and decided not to follow the majority opinion, which had found economic development to be a valid public purpose. Instead, the Iowa court announced that Justice O'Connor's dissenting opinion, which a number of other states follow, was the better interpretation for purposes of the Iowa Constitution because it provides stronger protection against the abuse of eminent domain.

**THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED**, that the Board of Supervisors of Shelby County, under the authority of <u>IA</u> <u>Code 331.301(1)</u>, shall "exercise any power and perform any function it deems appropriate to protect and preserve the rights, privileges, and property of the county and its residents, and to preserve and improve the peace, safety, health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of its residents." Based on the findings of the Iowa Supreme Court in *Puntenney v. Iowa Utilities Board*, the Shelby County Board of Supervisors finds in fact they are not limited by <u>IA Code 331.301(1)</u>, to be "inconsistent with the laws of the general assembly" in protecting and preserving private property takings utilizing eminent domain due to the lack of public purpose where in this case the sole purpose is private economic gain by Summit Carbon Solutions and affiliates. Therefore, the Shelby County Board of Supervisors objects to the use of eminent domain for private economic gain and urges the Iowa Utilities Board not to grant Summit the use of eminent domain for this project.

Parkhurst made a motion to approve the resolution, Schaben seconded the resolution, the motion passed with ayes by Kenkel, Schaben and Parkhurst. No nays were cast.

The Lonely Oak Distillery submitted their yearly alcohol permit to the Supervisors for consideration. Schaben made a motion to approve the permit, Parkhurst seconded the motion, the motion passed.

Auditor Maxwell then placed the following resolution before the Supervisors to consider.

## RESOLUTION NO. 2024-26 AUTHORIZE AUDITOR TO TRANSFER FUNDS FISCAL YEAR 2025

WHEREAS, it is desired to transfer monies from the General Funds and from the Rural Basic Fund, and WHEREAS, said operating transfers are in accordance with Sections 331.432, Code of Iowa, NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Shelby County, Iowa, as follows:

SECTION 1. The Auditor is hereby authorized to transfer funds from the General Basic and from the Rural Basic Funds to the Capital Fund to cover expenditures as set out in the County Budget for Fiscal Year 2025.

SECTION 2. The Auditor is hereby authorized to transfer funds from the General Basic Fund to the General Supplemental Fund to cover expenditures as set out in the County Budget for Fiscal Year 2025.

SECTION 3. The Auditor is hereby authorized to transfer funds from the Rural Basic Fund and the General Basic fund to the Secondary Roads Fund to cover expenditures as set out in the County Budget for Fiscal Year 2025.

SECTION 4. The Auditor is hereby authorized to transfer funds from the Rural Basic Fund to the Flood & Erosion Control Fund and Capital Fund to cover expenditures as set out in the County Budget for Fiscal Year 2025.

SECTION 5. The Auditor is hereby authorized to transfer funds from the General Basic Fund to the Conservation Fund to cover expenditures as set out in the County Budget for Fiscal Year 2025.

Parkhurst made motion to approve the resolution, Schaben seconded the motion, the motion passed with ayes by Kenkel, Parkhurst and Schaben, no nays were cast.

The meeting was then adjourned.

Steve Kenkel, Chairman

ATTEST:

Mark Maxwell Clerk to the Board of Supervisors